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BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL SCHOOLS / SPECIAL SERVICES

District Administration Office

540 Farview Avenue, Paramus, New Jersey 07652 e Tel. (201) 343-6000 © Fax (201) 225-9067
January 29, 2021

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education

Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School
County of Bergen, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

State Department of Education statutes require that all general-purpose local governments publish
within five months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we
hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the Bergen County Technical and
Vocational High School District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the Bergen County
Technical and Vocational High School District. Consequently, management assumes full
responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report.
To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the Bergen County
Technical and Vocational High School District has established a comprehensive internal control
framework that is designed both to protect the School District’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Bergen County Technical
and Vocational High School District’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because
the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Bergen County Technical and
Vocational High School District’s comprehensive framework or internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be
free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District’s financial statements have
been audited by Lerch, Vinci & Higgins, LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants and
public school accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance
that the financial statements of the Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor
concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified
opinion that the Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District’s financial



statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.
The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this
report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the Bergen County Technical and Vocational
High School District was part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet
the special needs of federal grant agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements
require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial
statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal
requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the
administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the Bergen County Technical and
Vocational High School District’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The Bergen County Technical & Vocational High School District’s MD&A
can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

The district operates four high schools: Bergen County Academies in Hackensack, including seven
magnet high school programs with a career focus; Bergen County Technical High School —
Teterboro, with eleven technical concentrations; Bergen County Technical High School — Paramus,
with eleven concentrations, including full-time options for students with special learning needs and
shared-time options for general education students and students with special learning needs, who
remain at their local sending districts for academics and select part-time technical education in the
county school; and Applied Technology High School, a CTE program in partnership with Bergen
Community College, currently offering an engineering technology concentration and a Health
Professions concentration with an additional concentration—Cybersecurity —beginning in school
year 2021-22. Also, in the 2020-21 school year, a new CTE program has been created in partnership
with the Northern Valley Regional School District which will offer a concentration in Interactive
Design Technology.

Bergen County Technical Schools also offer an array of postsecondary programs. These include
full-time day training programs and part-time evening and apprenticeship courses through the Adult
& Continuing Education Division, training for emergency medical service and heavy rescue
workers through the Emergency Medical Services Training Center, and career readiness and
training through the Bergen Workforce Center which offers programs that qualify under the
workforce development programs dating back to the Manpower Development and Training Act of
1962. Through the years, the school district has operated the training component, in full or in part,
for all of these programs. Since 1995, the district has also served as the administrative agent for
these programs, beginning with the federal Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA), which was later
replaced by the current Workforce Investment Opportunity Act(WIOA).

The District completed the 2019-20 fiscal year with an enrollment of 2,381 secondary students,
which is 79 students more than the previous year. The following details changes in District
enrollment over the last ten years:

Enrollment
2019/20 2,511
2018/19 2,432
2017/18 2,381
2016/17 2,342




Enrollment

2015/16 2,277
2014/15 2,208
2013/14 2,260
2012/13 2,218
2011/12 2,276
2010/11 2,226

The District continues its administrative partnership with Bergen County Special Services,
facilitating an efficient and productive sharing of resources including central office administrations,
professional development sources and opportunities, pedagogical and technological expertise, and
other peripheral support services. The district also provides as-needed personnel and special
project support to the Bergen County Workforce Investment Act.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

Located in Northeastern New Jersey in close proximity to New York City, Bergen County is an
important economic entity. Although Bergen County comprises only 3% of New Jersey’s total land
area, it has the largest number of workers, private-sector jobs, and highest per capital income in the
state. Its 900,000 residents live in 70 municipalities, which include 56 boroughs, 9 townships, 3
cities, and 2 villages.

According to the Bergen County Economic Development Corporation, Bergen has over 14% of the
states jobs (487,000) and over 14% of New Jersey's manufacturing jobs - both records for the state,
at $15 billion. Hackensack, the County Seat, is home to Bergen's top employer, Hackensack
University Medical Center. This state-of-the-art teaching and research hospital is the largest
provider of inpatient and outpatient services in the state. The New Jersey Sports and Exposition
Authority (Met Life Stadium, Meadowlands Racetrack, Izod Center) and the Valley Hospital
System round out the top three employers in the county. Other leading employers include: Quest
Diagnostics, Englewood Hospital & Medical Center, Bergen Regional Medical Center, Cingular
Wireless, Holy Name Hospital, The County of Bergen, and Mercedes-Benz.

MAJOR INITIATIVES:

The district has intensified its efforts towards offering early college options on all campuses. These
programs are designed for motivated students who are interested in challenging themselves by
enrolling in college level courses. Onsite at the Hackensack and Teterboro campuses, students can
take Honors and Advanced Placement (AP) courses; International Baccalaureate (IB) courses are
offered on the Hackensack campus. Through successful completion of AP and IB courses, students
have the opportunity to earn credit or advanced standing at most of the nation’s colleges and
universities. In addition, there are a number of articulation agreements with Fairleigh Dickinson
University and New Jersey Institute of Technology, which offer select graduating students
sophomore standing at the partnering school. Students are also able to take a number of college
courses off-site prior to graduating high school at Fairleigh Dickinson University and Bergen
Community College.




MAJOR INITIATIVES: (Continued)

At the special needs campus in Paramus, students are able to pursue certifications in all eleven
technical concentrations. Articulation agreements allow students to earn either college credits or
advanced standing upon successful completion of courses offered by eight postsecondary
institutions.

At Applied Technology High School, dual enrollment courses taught by Bergen Community
College instructors afford students the opportunity to earn up to 30 college credits upon graduation.
These credits can be applied to an A.S. or A.A.S. degree at Bergen Community College, enabling
students to earn their degrees in one year at the college, or may be transferred to a four-year college
or university.

The district’s most current initiative is focused on preparing students for continued globalization.
By preparing students to enter higher education institutions with a head start on their peers, we
believe that they will have the advantage of being the first to create new innovations for the
globalizing market. In addition, new courses are being offered to increase our students’ knowledge
of foreign investment and language in emerging markets. To complement classes in Mandarin and
International Business, student exchange programs with other nations have been initiated.

INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse
and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. The internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

As arecipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulation related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic
evaluation by the District’s management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of
the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and
regulations.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective
of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the Board of School Estimates. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the general fund and the special revenue fund. The final budget amount as amended for
the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section. An encumbrance accounting system is used to
record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are
either canceled or are included as reappropriation of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those
amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2020.




amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2020.
DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

At June 30, 2020, the District has no debt service. All bonded long-term debt is included in the
County of Bergen’s financial statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT:

By agreement with the Bergen County Administrator, the Board requests payment of enough funds
to meet immediate obligations and maintain a low cash balance. The Board relies on the county
administrator for an appropriate investment policy. The District has adopted a cash management
plan which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the
provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in
1970 to protect governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution
in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public
depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability,
automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and
contents, and fidelity bonds, workers® compensation, and a self-insured health benefits plan and
unemployment fund.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Board of Education and the Bergen
County Executive and Board of Chosen Freeholders for their concern in providing fiscal
accountability to the citizens and to taxpayers of the school district and thereby contributing their
full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this
report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our
accounting staff.

Respectfullysubmitted,

Dr. Howard Lerner
Superintendent
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ohn Susino
Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Trustees
Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District
Bergen County, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School
District, a component unit of the County of Bergen as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of Education’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ‘

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

17-17 ROUTE 208 + FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410 « TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100 - FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
WW Wg;VHCPA.COM



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District as of June 30, 2020, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information, pension information and other postemployment benefits information be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining fund financial statements, financial schedules, statistical section, schedule of expenditures of federal awards
as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and schedule of expenditures of state financial
assistance as required by New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State
Grants and State Aid, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements of the Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District.

The combining fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures of
state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund financial
statements, schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section, financial schedules and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

10




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 29, 2021 on our
consideration of the Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District’s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

i
)

/L te K Y rmce * fqpe L,/L '
LERCH, VINCI & HIGGIIX‘{ , LLP
ertified Public Accountants
Public School Accountants

Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS00756

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
January 29, 2021
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART I




MANAGEMENT’S DICUSSION AND ANALYSIS



BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

This section of Bergen County Technical and Vocational School District’s annual financial report
presents our discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that
ended on June 30, 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this
report and the District’s financial statements, which immediately follows this section.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standard Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 —
Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments. Certain comparative information between the current year (2019-2020) and the prior
year (2018-2019) is required to be presented in the MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for the 2019-2020 fiscal year include the following:

o The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Bergen County Technical and Vocational High
School District exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal
year by $25,095,765 (net position).

o  Overall district-wide revenues were $102,165,150, which were $4,253,531 more than expenses.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of $15,189,646.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts — Independent Auditor’s Report,

required supplementary information which includes the management’s discussion and analysis (this

section), the basic financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements
include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District:

12



BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

e The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both short-term
and Jong-term information about the District’s overall financial status.

¢ The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
District, reporting the District’s operations in more detail than the district-wide statements.

- The governmental funds statements tell how basic services were financed in the
short term as well as what remains for future spending.

- Proprietary funds statements offer short-term and long-term financial information
about the activities the district operated like businesses.

- Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in
which the District acts solely as a frustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom
the resources belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and
provide more detailed date figure A-1 shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged
and related to one another.

Figure A-1

Management's

. . Basic Required
Discussion . .
Financial Supplementary
and .
. Statements Information
Analysis

Government- Notes

Wide
Financial
Statements

Fund to the

Financial
Statements

Financial
Statements
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Figure A-2 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion of
the District’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this
overview section of management’s discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each
of the statements.

Figure A-2

Major Features of the Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide
Statements

Fund

Financial

Statements

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Fiduciary Funds

Scope

Entire district (except
fiduciary funds)

The activities of the district that
are not proprietary or fiduciary,
such as vocational education and
building maintenance, and

community education

Activities the district
operates similar to
private businesses:
Internal Service and

Enterprise funds

Instances in which the
District administers
resources on behalf of
someone else, such as
Unemployment,
Payroll agency, and
Scholarships

Required financial
statements

Statements of net position

Statement of activities

Balance Sheet

Statement of Revenue,
Expenditures and changes in

fund balances

Statement of Net Position

Statement of revenue,
expenses, and changes in

fund net position
Statement of cash flows

Statements of
Fiduciary net position
Statement of changes

in fiduciary net position

Accounting Basis and
Measurement focus

Accrual accounting and

economic resources focus

Modified accrual accounting
and current financial focus

Accrual accounting and

economic resources focus

Accrual accounting
And economic resources
Focus

Type of asset/liability/
deferred resource

All assets and liabilities,
deferred outflows/

Generally assets expected to be
used up and liabilities that come

All assets and liabilities,
deferred outflows/inflows

All assets and liabilities,
both short-term and long

information Inflows of resources, due during the year or soon there  |of resources, both funds do not currently
both financial and capital, [|after; no capital assets or long-term |financial and capital, and  |contain capital assets,
short-term and long-term liabilities included short-term and long-term __|although they can

Type of inflow/outflow |All revenues and expenses [Revenues for which cash is received |All revenues and expenses |All additions and

information during year, regardless of  |during or soon after the end of the  |during the year, regardless |dedications during the

when cash is received or
Paid

year; expenditures when goods or
services have been received and the
related liability is due and payable,

of when cash is received
or paid.

year, regardless of when
cash is received or paid.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of
the District’s assets, deferred outflows/inflows and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and
expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District’s nef position and how they have changed. Net
position — the difference between the District’s assets and deferred outflows of resources compared to
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources — is one way to measure the District’s financial health or

position
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e Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are an indicator of whether its
financial position is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

¢ To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial
factors such as changes in the District’s property tax base and the condition of school
buildings and other facilities.

In the government-wide financial statements the District’s activities are shown in two categories:

e Governmental activities — Most of the District’s basic services are included here, such as
vocational education, transportation, administration, and community education. County
taxes and tuition charged to other school districts are also reflected here.

e Business type activities — These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises.

Fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds — focusing
on its most significant or “major” funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices the
District uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs:

¢ Some funds are required by State.

e The District establishes other funds in accordance with the State of New Jersey Uniform Chart of
Accounts to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is properly using
certain revenues (federal and state grants).

The District has three kinds of funds: \

® Governmental funds — Most of the District’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in
and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s
programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the district-
wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statements
that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

o Proprietary funds — Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way as the government-wide statements.

The District uses internal service funds to report activities that provide supplies and services for the

District’s other programs and activities. The district currently has four internal service funds for the
following:

e Management Agreement-BCSSD e Compensated Absences
s Extended Year ¢ Interlocal Agreements
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Enterprise Funds — This fund is established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that costs of providing goods or
services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
The District currently has thirteen enterprise funds for the following:

e Food Service (Cafeteria) s Day Care Center

o Academy After Hours e Makerspace

o Technology Services o Auditorium Rentals

e Summer Science Funds e Math Camp Funds

s Summer Writing * Teterboro Summer

e Explorations * High School Enrichment

e Tech Camp

o Fiduciary funds — The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others. The District
is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended
purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the District’s fiduciary activities are reported
in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position.
We exclude these activities from the district-wide financial statements because the District cannot use
these assets to finance its operations.

Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found
following the basic financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information concerning the District’s budget process. The District adopts an
annual expenditure budget for the general and special revenue funds. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for these funds as required supplementary information. The required
supplementary information can be found following the notes to the financial statements.

Combining statements and schedules are presented immediately following the major budgetary
comparisons if required.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case

of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources by $25,095,765 as of June 30, 2020. See Table A-1.
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By far the largest portion of the District’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land
improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment); less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide
services to its students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets

themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Current Assets
Capital Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

of Resources

Other Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

of Resources

Net Position
Net Investment in
Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Table A-1

Net Position

as of June 30, 2020 and 2019

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 020 201

$ 21,702,149 $ 19,539,820 $ 1,233,587 § 1,448,188 § 22,935,736 $ 20,988,008
54,252,796 51,182,260 229,680 266,840 54,482,476 51,449,100
75,954,945 70,722,080 1,463,267 1,715,028 77,418,212 72,437,108
5,405,200 9,196,155 - - 5,405,200 9,196,155
81,360,145 79,918,235 1,463,267 1,715,028 82,823,412 81,633,263
2,595,548 2,256,883 235,284 451,184 2,830,832 2,708,067
40,753,875 43,921,960 - - 40,753,875 43,921,960
43,349,423 46,178,843 235,284 451,184 43,584,707 46,630,027
14,138,084 14,160,338 4,856 664 14,142,940 14,161,002
57,487,507 60,339,181 240,140 451,848 57,727,647 60,791,029
54,252,796 51,182,260 229,680 266,840 54,482,476 51,449,100
9,450,679 8,477,906 9,450,679 8,477,906
(39,830,837) (40,081,112) 993,447 996,340  (38,837,390) (39,084,772)
$ 23,872,638 $19,579,054 § 17223127 § 1,263,180 § 25,095,765 $ 20,842,234
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Revenues
Program Revenues

Tuition

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions
General Revenues

County Property Taxes

County Aid

State and Federal Aid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenses
Instruction
Regular
Other Special Instruction
Vocational Education
Other Instruction
Adult/Continuing Education
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services
School Administrative Services
General Administrative Services
Business/Central Other Support Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation

Food Services
Other-Business Activities

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position Before Transfers

Transfer

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

Table A-2

Change in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
31,036,851 § 28,566,296 31,036,851 $ 28,566,296
2,466,478 3,943,406 $ 3,162890 § 3,813,256 5,629,368 7,756,662
22,226,079 24,790,073 126,907 168,679 22,352,986 24,958,752
32,614,409 31,818,936 32,614,409 31,818,936
6,034,873 3,412,480 6,034,873 3,412,480
4211,287 4,625,073 4,211,287 4,625,073
285,376 640,568 - - 285,376 640,568
98,875,353 97,796,832 3,289,797 3,981,935 102,165,150 101,778,767
23,235,106 21,018,953 23,235,106 21,018,953
342,757 295,508 342,757 295,508
23,863,733 23,231,923 23,863,733 23,231,923
3,887,441 4,180,965 3,887,441 4,180,965
935,980 1,029,777 935,980 1,029,777
13,747,836 18,931,748 13,747,836 18,931,748
4,077,780 3,936,436 4,077,780 3,936,436
3,385,925 3,490,562 3,385,925 3,490,562
8,770,787 8,422,209 8,770,787 8,422,209
11,148,328 10,656,523 11,148,328 10,656,523
961,096 969,586 961,096 969,586
649,514 915,513 649,514 915,513
- - 2,905,336 2,923,271 2,905,336 2,923,271
94,356,769 96,164,190 3,554,850 3,838,784 97,911,619 100,002,974
4,518,584 1,632,642 (265,053) 143,151 4,253,531 1,775,793

(225,000) - 225,000 - - -

4,293,584 1,632,642 (40,053) 143,151 4,253,531 1,775,793
19,579,054 17,946,412 1,263,180 1,120,029 20,842,234 19,066,441

23,872,638 $§ 19,579,054

$

1,223,127 §

1,263,180 $ 25095765 $ 20,842,234
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
Governmental Activities. The District’s total governmental activities revenues were $98,875,353 for
the year ended June 30, 2020. Tuition and other charges to districts accounted for 34 percent of total
revenues. County taxes and aid account for 39 percent of total revenue for the year. Operating grants
and contributions account for 22 percent of revenues. Another 4 percent came from other operating
revenues consisting of unrestricted and restricted federal/state aid for capital outlay. The remaining 1
percent of revenues include investment earnings and other miscellaneous revenues.

The total cost of all governmental activities programs and services and transfers was $94,581,769. The
District’s expenses are predominantly related to educating and caring for students.

Total governmental activities revenues were more than expenses and transfers increasing net position
$4,293,584 from the last year.

Table A-3 Revenues by Source- Governmental Activities
For Fiscal Year 2020

Miscel- County
laneous State/ Aid
19 Federal Aid 6% C:untaé;z/ax
Operating 4% evy 33%
& Capital

Tuition/
Charges for

Services

34%
Table A-4 Expenditures by Type- Governmental Activities
For Fiscal Year 2020
Pupil Transpor- Plant
tation Operation Student & Inst.
Instruction 1% & Maint. Rel.

55% 15%

N —— 4

Business &

Other Supp.
School & 9%

General Admin.
8%
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Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities. The District’s total cost of services was $94,356,769
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. After applying program revenues, derived from tuition and
charges for services of $33,503,329 and operating grants and contributions of $22,226,079 the net cost

of services of the District was $38,627,361 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. See Table A-5.

Table A-5

Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Total Cost Net Cost/(Revenue)
of Services of Services
2020 2019 2020 2019
Instruction
Regular 23,235,106 $ 21,018,953 $§ 4235014 § 4,131,569
Other Special Instruction 342,757 295,508 (1,387,920) (1,353,233)
Vocational Education 23,863,733 23,231,923 (2,182,148) (1,542,473)
Other Instruction 3,887,441 4,180,965 2,431,993 2,831,041
Adult/Continuing Education 935,980 1,029,777 544,406 (26,289)
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services 13,747,836 18,931,748 9,939,910 11,390,887
School Administrative Services 4,077,780 3,936,436 3,215,757 2,921,952
General Administrative Services 3,385,925 3,490,562 2,535,548 2,603,585
Business and Other Support Services 8,770,787 8,422,209 7,699,880 6,966,001
Plant Operations and Maintenance 11,148,328 10,656,423 10,745,383 10,100,137
Pupil Transportation 961,096 969,586 849,538 841,238
Total 94,356,769 $ 96,164,090 $ 38,627,361 $ 38,864,415

Business-Type Activities — The District’s total business-type activities revenues were $3,289,797 for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Charges for services accounted for 4% of total revenues.
Operating and capital grants and contributions accounted for 96% of total revenue for the year.

The total cost of all business-type activities programs and services was $3,554,850 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020. The District’s expenses are related to Food Service programs provided to all

students, teachers and administrators within the District and various other business type services.

Total business-type activities revenues and transfers were less than expenses, decreasing net position
by $40,053 from the prior year.

20




BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As
the District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$15,189,646, which is $1,483,678 more than last year’s fund balance of $13,705,968.

Revenues for the District’s governmental funds were $93,129,146 while total expenses were
$91,103,894 resulting in an increase of $2,025,252 in fund balance. Transfers to the Compensated
Absences Internal Service Fund and Business-Type activities fund of $541,574 resulted in a total net
increase of $§ $1,483,678 fund balance.

General Fund - The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District and includes the primary
operations in providing educational services to students.

The following schedule presents a comparison of General Fund Revenues for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2020 and 2019.

Fiscal Fiscal Amount of Percent
Year Ended Year Ended Increase Increase
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Local Sources
County Property Taxes $ 32,614,409 $ 31,818,936 $ 795,473 3%
Tuition 31,036,851 29,821,663 1,215,188 4%
Miscellaneous 579,330 969,406 (390,076) -40%
State/Federal
Sources 15,110,501 14,498,533 611,968 4%
Total General Fund Revenues $§ 79,341,091 $ 77,108,538 $ 2,232,553 3%

Total General Fund Revenues increased by $2,232,553 or 3% over the previous year.
County property taxes increased by 3%. Tuition, which represents 39% of total general fund revenues,
increased by 4%.

Miscellaneous revenues decreased by $390,076.

State/Federal sources increased by $611,968 or 4% from the previous year. The increase was mainly
due to an increase of State on-behalf TPAF contributions/reimbursements.
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The following schedule presents a comparison of General Fund expenditures for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Fiscal Fiscal Amount of Percent
Year Ended Year Ended Increase Increase
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Instruction and Support Services $ 76,227,714 $ 73,996,325 $ 2,231,389 3%
Capital Outlay 1,420,240 1,269,915 150,325 12%
Total Expenditures $ 77,647,954 $ 75,266,240 $ 2,381,714 3%

Total General Fund expenditures increased $2,381,714 or 3% from the previous year, mainly due to an
increase of capital expenditures.

In 2019-2020 General Fund revenues were more than expenditures by $1,693,137 before net transfers
out of $713,399. Therefore, total fund balance increased by $979,738. The fund balance increased
from $11,542,949 at June 30, 2019 to $12,522,687 at June 30, 2020.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund includes all restricted Federal, State and Local
sources utilized in the operations of the district in providing educational services to students with special
needs.

Revenues of the Special Revenue Fund were $7,752,939, for the year ended June 30, 2020. Federal
sources accounted for the majority of Special Revenue Fund’s revenue which represented 77% of the
total revenue for the year.

Total Special Revenue Fund revenues decreased $331,028 or 4% from the previous year. State sources
decreased $67,048 or 4%, while Federal sources decreased $218,103 or 4%. Revenues from local
sources decreased $45,877.

Expenditures of the Special Revenue Fund were $7,752,939.

Capital Projects - The capital projects revenues and transfers were more than expenses by $503,697
increasing fund balance to $2,565,671 at June 30, 2020.

Permanent Fund - The Permanent Fund accounts for the assets held under the terms of a formal trust
agreement. In the case of the District, the principal portion is reserved for scholarships. The total fund
balance at June 30, 2020 is $101,288 of which $100,000 is nonspendable and $1,288 is restricted for
scholarships.
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Proprietary Funds

The District maintains both Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds to account for activities which
are supported in part through user fees. :

Enterprise Fund - The District uses Enterprise Funds to report activities related to the Food Services
program as well as other business-type activities. The District’s Enterprise Fund provides the same type
of information found in the government-wide financial statements, business-type activities, but in more
detail. Factors concerning the finances of this Fund have already been addressed in the discussion of
the District’s business-type activities.

Internal Service Fund - The District uses internal service funds to report activities that provide
services and supplies for the District’s other programs and activities, as well as services provided on
behalf of other districts. The internal service fund is also utilized to account for the District’s liabilities
relating to compensated absences.

The internal service fund has a fund balance of $595,315 at June 30, 2020.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. These
budget amendments fall into two categories

¢ Implementing budgets for specially funded projects, which include both federal and
state grants, reinstating prior year purchase orders being carried over, and appropriating

capital reserve funds.

e Increases in appropriations for significant unbudgeted costs.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

The District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June
30, 2020 amounts to $54,482,476 (net of accumulated depreciation). The capital assets consist of land
improvements, buildings, building improvements, computers, specialized machinery and various other
types of equipment. Depreciation charges for the fiscal year 2019-2020 amounted to $4,123,566 for
governmental activities and $37,160 for business-type activities.

Table 6
Capital assets at June 30, 2020 and 2019
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Land Improvements $ 805,639 $ 529,804 $ 805,639 § 529,804
Building and Building Improvements 46,438,159 44,347,764 46,438,159 44,347,764
Machinery and Equipment 7,008,998 6,304,692 $§ 229680 $§ 266,840 7,238,678 6,571,532
Total Capital Assets, Net $ 54,252,796 § 51,182,260 $§ 229,680 $§ 266,840 § 54,482,476 §$ 51,449,100

Additional information on the District’s capital assets are presented in the “Notes to the Financial
Statements”.
LONG TERM LIABILITIES

At year end, the District’s long-term liabilities consisted of compensated absences of $3,393,064 and
net pension liability of $37,360,811.

Additional information of the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in the Notes to the Financial
Statements”.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

Many factors were considered by the District’s administration during the process of developing the
fiscal year 2020-2021 budget. The primary factors were the District’s projected student population
anticipated county, state and federal aid as well as increasing salary and related benefit costs.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional
information contact the Business Office, Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School, 540
Fairview Avenue, Paramus, NJ 07652.
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BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net
Internal Balances
Inventories
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Liability

Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Intergovernmental Advances and Payables
Unearned Revenue
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due within one year
Due beyond one year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred Commodities Revenue
Deferred Amounts on Net Pension Liability

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflow of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Maintenance
Other Purposes- Permanent Endowment
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

AS OF JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT A-1

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 8,190,761 $ 872,877 $ 9,063,638
13,502,888 349,925 13,852,813
8,500 (8,500) -

19,285 19,285

54,252,796 229,680 54,482,476
75,954,945 1,463,267 77,418,212
5,405,200 - 5,405,200
81,360,145 1,463,267 82,823,412
2,174,639 120,296 2,294,935

4,700 3,238 7.938

416,209 111,750 527,959
40,753,875 - 40,753,875
43,349,423 235,284 43,584,707
4,856 4,856

14,138,084 - 14,138,084
57,487,507 240,140 57,727,647
54,252,796 229,680 54,482,476
8,642,867 8,642,867
706,524 706,524
101,288 101,288
(39,830,837) 993,447 (38,837,390)

$ 23,872,638 $ 1,223,127 $ 25,095,765

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A-2

BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities
Instruction:
Regular 23,235,106 $ 10,376,522 $ 8,623,570 $ (4235014 (4,235,014)
Other Special Instruction 342,757 1,730,677 1,387,920 1,387,920
Vocational 23,863,733 19,720,635 6,325,246 2,182,148 2,182,148
Other Instruction 3,887,441 576,317 879,131 (2,431,993) (2,431,993)
Adult/Continuing Education Programs 935,980 391,574 (544,406) (544,406)
Support Services:
Student & Instruction Related Services 13,747,836 330,454 3,477472 (9,939,910) (9,939,910)
School Administrative Services 4,077,780 3,702 858,321 (3,215,757 (3,215,757)
General Administrative Services 3,385,925 842,417 7,960 (2,535,548) (2,535,548)
Business/Central & Other Support Services 8,770,787 1,015,869 55,038 (7,699,880) (7,699,880)
Plant Operations and Maintenance 11,148,328 140,627 262,318 (10,745,383) (10,745,383)
Pupil Transportation 961,096 105,212 6,346 - (849,538) - (849,538)
Total Governmental Activities 94,356,769 33,503,329 22,226,079 - (38,627,361) - (38,627,361)
Business - Type Activities
Food Service 649,514 468,555 126,907 3 (54,052) (54,052)
Other 2,905,336 2,694,335 - - - (211,001) (211,001)
Total Business Type Activities 3,554,850 3,162,890 126,907 - - (265,053) (265,053)
Total Primary Government 97,911,619 $ 36,666,219 $ 22,352,986 $ - (38,627,361) (265,053) (38,892,414)
General Revenues:
County Property Tax Levy 32,614,409 32,614,409
County Aid 6,034,873 6,034,873
Federal and State aid unrestricted 3,452,071 3,452,071
Federal and State aid restricted 759,216 759,216
Investment Earnings 120,127 120,127
Miscellaneous Income 165,249 165,249
Transfers (225,000) 225,000 -
Total General Revenues and Transfers 42,920,945 225,000 43,145,945
Change in Net Position 4,293,584 (40,053) 4,253,531
Net Position - Beginning 19,579,054 1,263,180 20,842,234
Net Position - Ending $ 23,872,638 $ 1,223,127 25,095,765

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

ASSETS

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Due from Other Governments
State
Federal
Other

Due from BCSSD

Security Deposits

Due from Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Due to Other Governments
State
Federal

Due to Other Funds

Other Payable

Uneamed Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Permanent Fund - Principal Portion
Restricted
Capital Reserve
Maintenance Reserve

Mai e Reserve - Designated for Subsequent

Year's Budget
Permanent Fund
Capital Projects Fund

Assigned

Year-End Encumbrances

Designated for Subsequent Year's Budget

Unassigned
General Fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

EXHIBIT B-1

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020
Special Capital Total
General Revenue Projects Per t Gover tal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
3 7,591,828 $ 2,144 $ 2,017 $ 101,288 $ 7,697,277
105,474 570,385 675,859
1,594,280 1,394,280
6,412,469 4,100,040 10,512,509
44,333 44,333
3,500 3,500
2,875,500 - - - 2,875,500
$ 17,033,104 3 1,966,809 $ 4,102,057 $ 101,288 $ 23,203,258
$ 1,057,910 $ 719,495 $ 336,386 $ 2,113,791
4,219 4,219
481 481
3,393,064 825,000 1,200,000 5,418,064
59,443 1,405 60,848
- 416,209 - - 416,209
4,510,417 1,966,809 1,536,386 - 8,013,612
$ 100,000 100,000
6,077,196 6,077,196
606,524 606,524
100,000 100,000
1,288 1,288
2,565,671 2,565,671
3,964,952 3,964,952
700,000 700,000
1,074,015 - - - 1,074,015
12,522,687 - 2,565,671 101,288 15,189,646
$ 17,033,104 $ 1,966,809 $ 4,102,057 $ 101,288
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position (A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $118,649,610 and the accumulated depreciation
is $64,468,238. 54,181,372
Certain amounts resulting from the measurement of the net pension liability are
reported as either deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources
on the statement of net position and deferred over future years,
Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 5,405,200
Deferred Inflows of Resources (14,138,084)
(8,732,884)
Long term liabilities, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the fund
Net Pension Liability (37,360,811)
(37,360,811)
The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included with
governmental activities 595,315
Net position of governmental activities $ 23,872,638

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT B-2

Special Capital Total
General Revenue Projects Permanent Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
County Property Tax Levy $ 32,614,409 $ 32,614,409
County Aid $ 6,034,873 6,034,873
Tuition 31,036,851 31,036,851
GED Fees 28,197 28,197
Technology Agreement 266,000 266,000
Interest on Investments 119,884 $ 243 120,127
Miscellaneous 165,249 $ 22,894 - - 188,143
Total Local Sources 64,230,590 22,894 6,034,873 243 70,288,600
State Sources 15,096,425 1,766,194 16,862,619
Federal Sources 14,076 5,963,851 - - 5,977,927
Total Revenues 79,341,091 7,752,939 6,034,873 243 93,129,146
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Regular Instruction 17,045,423 3,579,084 20,624,507
Other Special Instruction 316,902 316,902
Vocational Education 21,022,785 21,022,785
Other Instruction 3,654,682 3,654,682
Adult/Continuing Education Programs 935,980 935,980
Support Services and Undistributed Costs
Student & Instruction Related Services 8,264,246 3,414,639 11,678,885
School Administrative Services 3,779,977 3,779,977
General Administrative Services 2,574,192 2,574,192
Plant Operations and Maintenance 9,996,752 688,355 10,685,107
Pupil Transportation 776,466 776,466
Business /Central Sves./ Admin. Info Technology 7,860,309 7,860,309
Capital Outlay 1,420,240 759,216 5,014,646 - 7,194,102
Total Expenditures 77,647,954 7,752,939 5,703,001 - 91,103,894
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues over/(under) Expenditures 1,693,137 - 331,872 243 2,025,252
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers Out (713,399) (713,399)
Transfers In - - 171,825 - 171,825
Total Other Financing Sources (713,399) - 171,825 - (541,574)
Net Change in Fund Balances 979,738 - 503,697 243 1,483,678
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 11,542,949 - 2,061,974 101,045 13,705,968
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 12,522,687 3 - $ 2,565,671 $ 101,288 $ 15,189,646

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-3
BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (B-2) $ 1,483,678

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital Outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded

depreciation in the period.

Depreciation Expense $  (4,116,048)
Capital Outlays 7,194,102

3,078,054

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses -

pension expense is measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental
funds, however, expenditures for this item is measured by the amount of financial
resources used (paid): :

Increase in Pension Expenses ' (284,042)
Internal Service funds are used by the District's management to charge the costs of various

programs/ services to other governmental activities. The net loss of the internal service
fund is reported with governmental activities.

Net Loss Before Transfers (300,680)
Transfers from General Fund 316,574
Change in Net Position 15,894

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 4,293,584

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B4
BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2020
Governmental
Internai Service
Business Type Activities Funds
Math X Other
Food Summer- Academy Technology Summer Camp High School Teterboro Tech Auditorium Governmental
Service Day Care Science Funds After Houry Services Makersnace Writing Funds Enrichment Summer Explorations Camp Rentals Services
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 87,154 3 23.123 3 12,523 $ 58,428 3 326,820 $ 653 $ 15140 $ 283910 $ 505 § 49,299 3 7.245 $ 7810 3 267 3 872,877 3 493,484
Intergovemmental Receivable - - - - 253,823 - - - - - - - 253,823
Other Accounts Receivable - 96,102 96,102
Due from B.C.8.8.D. - - - - - - - - - - - 830,007
Other Accounts Receivable - - - - . - - - - - - 35,400
Due [rom Other Funds - - - - - - - - - - - - - 3,393,064
Inventories 19.285 - - - - - - - - - - - - 19,285 -
Total Current Assets 106,439 23,123 12,523 58,428 580,643 653 15,140 283.910 505 49.299 7.248 7,810 96,369 1,242,087 4,751,955
Capital Assets
Furniture, machinery & equiptment 668,272 - - 871 1,233,536 - - - - - - - 88,164 1,990,843 90219
Less: Acctimulaled Depreciation 538,836 - - (871) 1,163.104 - - - - - - - (58,352) (1,761,163) (18,795)
Toln! Capital Assets, Net 129,436 - - - 70432 - - K - - - - 29,812 229,680 71424
Total Assets 235,875 23,123 12,523 58428 651,075 633 15,140 283,910 505 49.299 7245 7810 126,181 1,471,767 4.823.379
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 37.813 - - - 82,483 - - - - - 120,296 -
Other Payable 23 - - - 3.215 - - - - - - - 3238 -
Due to Other Funds 8,500 8.500 835,000
Due o B.C.S.S.D. - - - - -
Unearned Revenue - - - - - - - 11,970 - 39,880 - - 59,900 111,750 -
Totai Current Liabilities 37,836 - - - 85,698 - - 11,970 - 39,880 - - 68.400 243,784 835,000
Neoncurrent Lisbifities
Compensated Absences - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 3,393.064
Total Noncurrent Liabilities - - - - - - - - - - . - - - 3,393.064
Total Liabilities 37.836 - - - 85,698 - - 11,970 - 39.880 . - 68,400 243,784 4,228,064
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred Commoditics Revenue 4,856 - . - - - - - - - - - - 4,856 -
Total Lisbilities and Deferred Inflow of Resources 42,692 - - - 85,698 - - 11,870 - 39,880 - - 68,400 248,640 4,228,064
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 129,436 - 70432 - ' - 29,812 229.680 71424
Unrestricted 63,747 23,123 12,523 58428 494,945 653 15,140 271,940 505 9419 7.245 7.810 27,969 993,447 523,891
Total Net Position $ 193,183 $ 23,123 $ 12,523 3 58,428 $ 565377 3 653 $__ 15140 $ 271940 3 505 § 9419 $ 7245 § 1810 857781 $ 1223127 $ 595,315

The accompanying Notes 1o the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-5
BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL PISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Governmental
Business Type Activitics Activities
Math Internal
Food S Acad T Summer Camp High School Teterboro Tech Auditorium Service
Service Day Care Scicnce Funds After Hours Servicey Makerspace Writing Funds Enri Summer Explorati Camp Totals Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services
Daily sales - reimbusable programs
Lunch Progtam $ 246741 - - - - - - - - - - - $ 246,741
Breakfast Program 5.039 - - - - - - - - - - - 5.039
Daily sales - nonreimbursable programs 171927 171,927
Specia] Functions 44,848 - - - - - - - - - - - 44,848
Charges and Fees - $§ 309774 3 41,034 $_ 166899 § _ 1,842,586 $ 4892 3 18,125 $ 110863 - § 35016 - $ 15117 $ 150,029 2,694.335 $ 2372281
Tolal Operating Revenues 468,555 309.774 41,034 166,899 1,842,586 4,892 18,125 110,863 - 35016 - 15,117 150,029 3,162,890 2,172,281
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Sales - reimburseable programs 185629 - - - - . - - - - - - 185,629 -
Cost of Sales - nonseimburseable programs 68,275 68275 -
Salaries/Salaries of Teachers 242,341 190.992 34.284 89,225 1,177,848 7.442 10.176 76.129 - 31778 - 12,421 283,166 2.155,802 1,661,545
Compensated Absences Payable - - - - - - - - - - - - - 316,574
Employee Benefits 73.905 104,611 - 5.862 509.978 569 - - - - - 950 21,662 717,537 393471
Tuition Reimbursement -
Purchased Prof-Edue. Service - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Other Purchased Services 50.023 4,441 - - 102,650 1,500 7.250 1,905 - - - 27119 170,488 86,932
Supplies and Materials 15,648 730 1.688 300 196,914 573 - - - - - - 1,993 217846 6,921
Textbocks 1699 1699
Depreciation 13.693 - - - 16,514 - - - - 6953 37.160 7518
Other Objects - 315 - - - 99 - - - - - - - 414 -
Total Operating Expenses 649,514 301,089 35,972 95,387 2,003,904 10,183 17.426 79,733 - 31,778 - 13371 316493 3,554.850 2,472,961
Operating Income (Loss) 180,959 8,685 5,062 71,512 (161,318) (5.291) 699 31.130 - 3,238 - 1,746 (166,464’ (391.960) 300,680,
NONOPERATING REVENUES
State Sources
State School Lunch Program 3.985 3.985
Federal Sources -
National School Lunch Program 74,746 74746
National School Lunch Program - PB 5.462 5462
Commodities Program 34,896 34,896
National School Breaklust Program 7.818 - - - - - - - - : - - - 7818 -
Total Non-Operating Revenues 126,907 - - - - - - - - - - - - 126,907 -
Nel Income (Loss) (54.052) 8.685 5,062 71,512 (161.318) 5.291) 699 31.130 - 3238 - 1,746 (166.464) (265,053) (300.680)
Transfers
Transfers In(Out) 150,000 - - - - - - - - - - - 75,000 225,000 316,574
Change in Net Position 95,948 8.685 5,062 71512 (161,318) (5.291) 699 31,130 - 3.238 - 1,746 (91.464) 40.053) 15,894
Total Net Position - Beginning 97,235 14,438 7.461 (13,089 726,695 5944 14.441 240,810 $ 505 6.181 $ 7245 § 6064 149,245 1,263,180 579421
Tolal Net Position - Ending $ 193183 3 23,123 $ 12,523 $ 58428 $ 565,377 $ 653 $ 15,140 $_271.940 $ 505 $ 9419 3 7245 $ 7810 $ 57,781 3 1,223,127 3 395,315

‘The accompanying Notes lo the Financial Stalements are an integral pari of this statement.
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CASI{ FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Employces

Payments for Horlth Benefits

Payments to Supplicrs

Net Cash Provided by(Used for) operating ncfiviies

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources

Federal Sources

Operating Subsidies und transfers to/fron ofher funds

Net cash provided by (used for) noncepitsl finarcing aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capitel asscts

Net cash provided by(used for) capital and related financing activities
Net incrense (decrense) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivatents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Cnsh Equivalents - End of Yenr

Recongilintion of Operating Incone (foss) fo nef cash provided (used)
by operating activities
Operating Income(Loss)
Adjusiments to reconcile operating income(loss) to net cash provided
by (uscd for) operating activities
Deprecintion
Food Distribution (USDA Commodities)- National School Lunch Progeatit
(Incrense) Decrense in accounts reoeivable, siet
(Incresse) Decrense in inventories
Inorense/{ Decrease) int unsamed revenue
(Incrense)/Decrease in Other Payable
Increase(Decrense) in sccounts payable

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) operaling activities

Noncash Investing, Capital and Finunicing Activitios
Fair Value of Food Distribution Program- Nafions] School Lunch

BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXIIBIT B-6

Governmental
Internat Service
Bustocss Type Activities Funds
Math Other
Food Suramer- Academy Technology Summer Camp High School Teterbora Tech Audilorium Governmental
Service ny Care Science Fynds Aftey Tlours Services Mukerspace Writing Funds Enrichment ammer Exploration Camp Rentals ‘otals Services
$ 429,507 $ 309,774 41,034 $ 128,199 $ 1,785.291 $ 4,892 721 5 9.463 $ 37,592 - $ 802 3 137.207 $ 2,884,482 $ 2271318
(242341 (190992 §  (34284) (89.225) (1,177.848) (7.442) (10,176) (76.129) GBL8) - (12.421) (283.166) (2.155.802) (2,055,016
(73.905) {104,611) - (5.862) (509,978) (569) - - - - (950) (21.662) (717,537) (316.574)
(339,205 5,734) 1,688 (300 224.692) 2,172) 9,250, (3.604) - - - - (4.712) 591,357 1,033,535
(225.944) 8,437 5,062 32812 (127,221 6291 (18.703) (30.270) - 5814 - (12.569) (172.333) (580.214) (LE33,807)
4352 4352
97,855 97.855
150,000 - - - - - - - - - - - 83,500 233,500 1,150,587
252,207 - - - - - - - - - - - 83,500 335,707 1,150,587
26,263 8.437 5,062 32812 (27,220 5.291) (18.705) (70.270) - 5814 - (12.569) (88.833) (244,507) 16.780
60.891 14.686 7,461 25,616 454,047 5.944 33.845 354,180 s 508 43,485 b3 7.245 20,379 89,100 1.117.384 476.704
5 87.154 s 23.123 5 12,523 $ 58428 $ 326,820 $ 653 3 15,140 s 283.910 s 505 $ 49,299 $ 7,245 $ 7,810 $ 267 3 872,877 $ 493.484
$ (180.959) 5 8.685 $ 5,062 $ 71512 $ (161,318) $ (5.291) $ 699 5 31130 3 - $ 3.238 5 - k) 1.746 3 (166,464) $ (391,960) 3 {300,680}
13.693 - - - 16,514 - - . - - - 6.953 37,160 7.518
34,232 34232
- - - . 24,581 - {2.000) - - - - (62.607) (40.026) 99.037
9.912) - - - - - - - - - - - (9.912)
4,192 - - (38.700) (81,876) - (17.404) (101.400) - 2.5% - (14,315) 49,785 {197.142)
8142 248) - - 4872 - - - - - - - - 26,482 (939.682)
(44,985) 48) - (38.700) 34,091 - (19,408 (101.400) - 2576 - (14,315) (5.869)  ___ (188.254) (833,427
§ . pod) s 8437 8 5062 8 32812 8 (2maan S _(529) S (18705 0§ (702710) § - s 5814 8 S s___(2369) (72333 8 (ss0214) 8 (1,133.807)
$ 34,232

‘The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,



BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 36, 2020
Private
Unemployment Purpose
Compensation Scholarship Agency
Trust Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 391,290 $ 25,930 1,122,951
Due from Other Funds 61,779 - -
Total Assets 453,069 $ 25,930 1,122,951
LIABILITIES
Due to State of New Jersey 22,652
Payroll deductions and withholdings 167,494
Due to Other Funds 7,000
Payable to student groups - - 948,457
Total Liabilities 22,652 - 1,122,951
NET POSITION
Held in trust for unemployment
claims and other purposes $ 430,417
Reserved for scholarships $ 25,930

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Private
Unemployment Purpose
Compensation Scholarship
Trust Fund Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Plan Member $ 61,779
Donations - $ 2,301
Total Contributions 61,779 2,301

Investment Earnings:
Interest 981 64
Net investment earnings ' 981 64
Total Additions » 62,760 2,365
DEDUCTIONS
Unemployment Claims 88,657 -

Withdrawals - 2,204
Total Deductions 88,657 2,204
Change in Net Position (25,897) 161
Net Position, Beginning of Year 456,314 25,769
Net Position, End of the Year $ 430,417 $ 25,930

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Bergen County Technical and Vocational High School District (the “Board” or the “District”) is an instrumentality of
the State of New Jersey, established to function as an education institution. The Board consists of five officials approved by
the Board of Chosen Freeholders and is responsible for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by
the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District. Under existing statutes, the Board's duties and
powers include, but are not limited to, the development and adoption of a school program; the establishment, organization
and operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and disposition of school property.

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the establishment of a
system of accounting and budgetary controls.

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are includedto
ensure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds,
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the District. For the Bergen County Technical and
Vocational High School District this includes general operations, food service, other enterprise funds and student related
activities of the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District is
financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board
and (1) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or
(2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization’s resources; the District is legally obligated or
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the
District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally
dependent on the District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. Based on the
foregoing criteria, the District has no component units. However, the District would be considered a component unit of the
County of Bergen on the basis of such criteria.

B. New Accounting Standards

For fiscal year 2020, there were no GASB statements required to be adopted and implemented by the District.

Accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact on the financial
statements include:

o GASB No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, implementation postponed will be effective beginning with the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2021. The objective of this Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of
fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This
Statement established criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
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BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. New Accounting Standards (Continued)

GASB No. 87, Leases, implementation postponed will be effective beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30,
2022. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by
improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based
on the payment provisions of the contract.

GASB No. 89, Accounting for Interest Costs Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period, implementation
postponed will be effective beginning with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The objectives of this Statement is
to improve financial reporting by providing users of financial statements with more relevant information about
capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period. The resulting information also will enhance the
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period for both
governmental activities and business-type activities.

GASB No. 92, Omnibus 2020, implementation postponed will be effective beginning with the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2022 except requirements related to GASB No. 87 and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3 are effective
upon issuance. The objective of this Statement is to enhance comparability in the application of accounting and
financial reporting requirements and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice
issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement
addresses a variety of topics.

GASB No. 96, Subscription — Based Information Technology Arrangements, will be effective beginning with the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. The objective of this Statement will be to improve financial reporting by
establishing a definition for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) and providing
uniform guidance for accounting and financial reporting for transactions that meet that definition. That definition
and uniform guidance will result in greater consistency in practice. Establishing the capitalization criteria for
implementation costs also will reduce diversity and improve comparability in financial reporting by governments.
This Statement also will enhance the relevance and reliability or a government’s financial statements by requiring a
government to report a subscription asset and subscription liability for a SBITA and to disclose essential information
about the arrangement. The disclosures will allow users to understand the scale and important aspects of a
government’s SBITA activities and evaluate a government’s obligations and assets resulting from SBITAs.

GASB No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue
Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans — An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No.84, and a
Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32, the section that maybe applicable to the District will be effective beginning
with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The objective of this Statement is to provide more consistent financial
reporting of defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, and other employee benefit plans,
while mitigating the costs associated with reporting those plans. The requirements also will enhance the relevance,
consistency, and comparability of (1) the information related to Section 457 plans that meet the definition of a
pension plan and the benefits provided through those plans and (2) investment information for all Section 457 plans.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements

The financial statements include both district-wide financial statements (based on the District as a whole) and fund financial
statements (based on specific District activities or objectives). Both the district-wide and fund financial statements
categorize activities as either governmental activities or business-type activities. While separate district-wide and fund
financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. In the district-wide financial statements, the governmental activities
column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service funds, while business-type activities incorporate data
from the District’s enterprise funds. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the district-wide financial statements.

District-Wide Financial Statements

The district-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Board of Education. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial
statements. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. In the statement of net position,
both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b)
reflect on a full accrual economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations. :

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or other governmental-entities, including other school districts, who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. County property taxes,
unrestricted state aid and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the district-wide financial statements. Exceptions
to this general rule are charges between the Board’s proprietary and fiduciary funds since elimination of these charges would

distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary activities, even though the latter
are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual
governmental and enterprise funds, each reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The District considers all of its
governmental and enterprise funds to be major funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the School District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District, except those to be accounted for in another fund.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. This fund accounts for federal, state and local financial programs, with the exception of grants
for major capital projects and the child nutrition programs.

The capital projects fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases and other revenues used
for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by the
proprietary funds.

The permanent fund accounts for the proceeds from scholarship donations held under the terms of a formal trust
agreement whereby the District is under obligation to maintain the principal.

The District reports the following major proprietary funds which are organized to be self-supporting through user charges:

The food service fund accounts for the activities of the school cafeteria, which provides food service to students as
well as a la carte and catering services for administrators, teachers and special events.

The other enterprise funds accounts for the operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. The stated intent is that the costs of providing goods or services to the students on a continuing
basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

The internal service fund accounts for the financing of goods and services provided to other departments or agencies
of the District, or to other Boards of Education on a cost reimbursement basis. These activities include services
related to Bergen County Special Services School District, the extended school year program, interlocal agreements
and compensated absences.

The fiduciary trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for state unemployment insurance
claims and for private donations for scholarship awards. All resources of the funds, including any earnings on
invested resources, may be used to support the intended purpose. There is no requirement that any portion of these
resources be preserved as capital.

The fiduciary agency funds account for assets held by the District as an agent for student activities and for payroll
deductions and withholdings. The funds for the student activities fund are solely for noninstructional student
activities that are supported and controlled by student organizations and clubs for which school administration does
not have management involvement. The payroll funds are held to remit employee withholdings to respective state,
federal and other agencies.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other
funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due
to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the district-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data may have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current
year’s presentation. ‘

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or
economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial
statements.

The district-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements with the exception of the agency fund which
does not have a measurement focus. All assets, all liabilities and all deferred outflows/inflows of resources associated with
these operations (with the exception of the fiduciary funds) are included on the Statement of Net Position. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they are both
measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Board considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
basis of accounting, with the exception of debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments which are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.

Property taxes, tuition, unrestricted state aid, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements (formula-type
grants and aid) are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the
amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. Expenditure-driven grants and
similar awards (reimbursement-type grants and awards) are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have
been incurred and all other eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met, and the amount is
received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. All other revenue items are considered to
be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Board’s policy to use restricted resources first,
then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are reported at fair value and are limited by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
2. Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected
to be uncollectible.

3. Inventories

The cost of inventories of the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items
are purchased.

Food Service Fund inventories, exclusive of the federal commodities, are valued at cost, using the first-in first-out (FIFO)
method and consist of food and expendable supplies. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenses when consumed
rather than when purchased. The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodity portion of the Food Service
Fund inventory consists of food donated by the USDA. It is valued at estimated market prices by the USDA. The amount of
unused commodities inventory at year-end is reported as deferred inflows of resources.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Board as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. The District was able to estimate the historical
cost for the initial reporting of these capital assets through back trending. As the District constructs or acquires additional
capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, and equipment of the District is
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land Improvements 20
Buildings 50
Building Improvements 25
Improvements other than Buildings 20
Heavy Equipment 10-20
Office Equipment and Furniture 10
Computer Equipment 5
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

5. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure)
until then. The Board has one item which arise only under the accrual basis of accounting that qualify for reporting in this
category. The item that qualifies for reporting in this category is the deferred amounts on net pension liability. Deferred
amounts on net pension liability are reported in the district-wide statement of net position and result from: (1) differences
between expected and actual experience; (2) changes in assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments; (4) changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions
and proportionate share of contributions; and (5) contributions made subsequent to the measurement date. These amounts
are deferred and amortized over future years.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Board
has two types of items, which arise only under the accrual basis of accounting that qualify for reporting in this category. The
first item that qualifies for reporting in this category are the deferred amounts on net pension liability. Deferred amounts on
net pension liability are reported in the district-wide statement of net position and result from: (1) differences between
expected and actual experience; (2) changes in assumptions; (3) net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investments; and (4) changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions. These amounts are deferred and amortized over future years. The other type of item, is
the deferred commodities revenue, reported in both the district-wide and the proprietary funds statements of net position.
The deferred commodities revenue represents the estimated market value of the donated and unused Federal commodities
inventory at year end. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the commodities are
consumed.

6. Compensated Absences

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate (with certain restrictions) earned but unused vacation, personal,
and sick leave benefits. A long-term liability of accumulated vacation, personal and sick leave and salary related payments
has been recorded in the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements, representing the Board’s
commitment to fund such costs from future operations. Proprietary Funds accrue accumulated vacation, personal and sick
leave and salary related payments in the period that they are earned. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only to
the amount actually due at year end as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

7. Pensions

In the district-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, for purposes of
measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the retirement systems sponsored and administered by the
State of New Jersey and additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’ fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the retirement systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.

In the governmental fund financial statements, net pension liabilities represent amounts normally expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources for required pension contributions that are due and payable at year end.
Pension expenditures are recognized based on contractual pension contributions that are required to be made to the pension
plan during the fiscal year.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

8. Long-Term Obligations

In the district-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net position.

9. Net Position/Fund Balance

District-Wide Statements

In the district-wide statements, there are three classes of net position:

e Net Investment in Capital Assets — consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated depreciation) reduced by
outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included.

o Restricted Net Position — reports net position when constraints placed on the residual amount of noncapital assets
are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

¢ Unrestricted Net Position — any portion of net position not already classified as either net investment in capital
assets or net position — restricted is classified as net position — unrestricted.

Governmental Fund Statements

Fund balance categories are designed to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on the District’s fund balance
more transparent. These categories are comprised of a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.

Nonspendable Fund Balance — Amounts that are not in a spendable form or are required to be maintained intact.

Principal — Represents the portion of fund balance not available for future spending that must be preserved in
accordance with a formal trust agreement.

Capital Reserve — This restriction was created by the District in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.1 to fund future
capital expenditures (See Note 2).

Maintenance Reserve — This restriction was created by the Board in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.2 to
accumulate funds for the required maintenance of school facilities in accordance with the EFCA (NJSA 18A:7G-9)
for a thorough and efficient education. (See Note 2).

Maintenance Reserve - Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures — This designation was created to dedicate the
portion of maintenance reserve fund balance appropriated in the adopted 2020/2021 District budget certified for taxes

Capital Projects — Represents fund balance restricted specifically for capital acquisitions and improvements in the
Capital Projects Fund.

Permanent Fund_ - The fund represents a donation to the Board; the funds are utilized to award scholarships.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

9. Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)
Governmental Fund Statements (Continued)

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the
governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority.

Year-End Encumbrances — Represent outstanding purchase orders for goods or services approved by management for
specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have not yet been
received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Designated for Subsequent Year’s Expenditures — This designation was created to dedicate the portion of fund balance
appropriated in the adopted 2020/2021 District budget certified for taxes.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Represents fund balance that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific
purposes within the governmental funds.

In the general operating fund and other governmental funds (capital projects and debt service fund types), it is the District’s
policy to consider restricted resources to have been spent first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted (i.e., committed, assigned or unassigned) fund balances are available, followed by committed and
then assigned fund balances. Unassigned amounts are used only after the other resources have been used.

10. Fund Balance Policies

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations requiring the use
of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a
commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a
formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. The Board of Trustees is the highest level of
decision-making authority for the government that can, by adoption of a resolution or formal Board action prior to the end of
the fiscal year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the resolution remains in place until a similar
action is taken (the adoption of another resolution) to remove or revise the limitation. The District has no committed fund
balance at year end.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do
not meet the criteria to be classified as committed. The Board has authorized the School Business Administrator/Board
Secretary to assign fund balance. The Board may also assign fund balance as it does when appropriating fund balance to
cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget. Unlike
commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to
be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove
or revise a commitment.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

1. Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues in the district-wide statement of activities include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods or services, provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all property taxes, unrestricted state aid, investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues.

2. Property Taxes

County property taxes are levied pursuant to law and are collected by the County Treasurer and are transferred to the
District as requested. County tax revenue is recognized in the year they are levied and become available. County taxes
collected in advance of the year-end for which they are levied and transferred to the District are reported as deferred
inflows of resources. The tax bills are mailed by the County Treasurer and are levied and due in four quarterly
installments on February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15. The County has the ability to charge interest on
payments remitted after these due dates. State statutes do not permit liens to be placed against the municipalities by the
County for unpaid property taxes.

3. Tuition Revenues and Expenditures

Tuition Revenues - Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined and certified by the State Department of Education.

4. Proprietary Funds, Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the food service enterprise fund, of the other enterprise
fund, and of the government’s internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
Federal and State subsidies for the food service operation are considered nonoperating revenues.

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

In accordance with the requirements of the New Jersey Department of Education (“the Department™), the District annually
prepares its operating budget for the forthcoming year. The budget, except for the general fund and special revenue fund,
which is more fully explained below and in the notes to the required supplementary information, is prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan for expenditures
and the proposed means for financing them. Capital lease transactions are accounted for on the GAAP basis.

The annual budget is adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general and special revenue funds. The District is

not required to adopt an annual budget for the capital projects fund. The budget is submitted to the county superintendent
for review and approval prior to adoption.
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

Budget adoptions and amendments are recorded in the District's board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board of
Trustees as needed throughout the year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is prepared
by fund source and amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fund, program, function, object and amount. The
legal level of budgetary control is established at the line item account within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as
the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
6:20-2A.2(m)1. The Board approved several budget transfers during 2019/2020. Also, during 2019/2020 the Board
increased the original budget by $4,956,766. The increase was funded by the additional revenue, capital reserve,
maintenance reserve, grant awards and the reappropriation of prior year general fund encumbrances.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information (RSI). Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable
appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as committed
and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments
related to unperformed contracts for goods and services which are reappropriated and honored during the subsequent fiscal
year.

B. Capital Reserve

A capital reserve account was established by the District. The accumulation of funds will be used for capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in
the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan
(LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by
appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts or both. A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-
14.1(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LRFP.
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

B. Capital Reserve (Continued)

The activity of the capital reserve for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2019 $ 5,433,468
Increased by:
Deposits Approved by Board Resolution $ 850,000
Interest 11,330
861,330
6,294,798
Decreased by:
Withdrawal Approved by Board Resolution (217,602)
Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 6,077,196

The withdrawals from the capital reserve were for use in a department approved facilities project, consistent with the
district’s Long Range Facilities Plan.

C. Maintenance Reserve

A maintenance reserve account was established by the District. The accumulation of funds will be used for required
maintenance of school facilities expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The maintenance reserve is maintained in the
General Fund and its activity is included in the General Fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the maintenance reserve are restricted to required maintenance activities for a school facility as reported in
the comprehensive maintenance plan. A District may appropriate funds into the maintenance reserve in the annual General
Fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended
line item appropriation amounts or both. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.2(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time
exceed four percent of the replacement cost of the school district’s school facilities for the current year.

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2019 $ 881,419
Increased by
Deposits Approved by Board Resolution 100,000
Total Increases 981,419
Withdrawals
Approved by Board Resolution (274,895)
Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 706,524

The June 30, 2020 comprehensive maintenance plan indicated a maximum maintenance reserve amount of $2,514,455. The
withdrawals from the maintenance reserve were for use in required maintenance activities for school facilities. $100,000 of
the maintenance reserve balance at June 30, 2020 was designated and appropriated for use in the 2020/2021 original budget
certified for taxes.
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash Deposits and Investments

Cash Deposits

The Board's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), National Credit Union
Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF), Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Board is required to deposit their funds in a depository which is protecting such
funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business in
the State of New Jersey to pledge collateral equal to at least 5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the
average amount of its public funds in excess of the lesser of 75% of its capital funds or $200 million for all deposits not
covered by the FDIC and NCUSIF.

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. NCUSIF insures credit union
accounts up to $250,000 in the aggregate for each financial institution. SIPC replaces cash claims up to a maximum of
$250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At June 30, 2020, the book value of the Board's deposits were $10,603,809 and
bank and brokerage firm balances of the Board’s deposits amounted to $13,119,239. The Board's deposits which are
displayed on the various fund balance sheets as “cash and cash equivalents™ are categorized as:

Bank

Depository Account Balance
Insured $ 13,119,239

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk As of June 30, 2020 none of
the Board’s bank balances were exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments

The Board is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
Examples of the allowable investments are bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America; Government Money Market Mutual Funds; any obligation that a federal agency or a federal
instrumentality has issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397
‘days from the date of purchase, provided that such obligations bear a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or
other external factor; bonds or other obligations of the school district or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units
within which the school district is located; Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date of not more than 397 days
from the date of purchase, issued by New Jersey school districts, municipalities, counties, and entities subject to the “Local
Authorities Fiscal Control Law,” (C.40A:5A-1 et seq.); Other bonds or obligations having a maturity date not more than 397
days from the date of purchase may be approved by the Division of Investment in the Department of the Treasury for
investment by school districts; Local Government investment pools; deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash
Management Fund established pursuant to section 1 of P.L.. 1977, ¢.281 (C.52:18A-90.4); and agreements for the repurchase
of fully collateralized securities, if transacted in accordance with the above statute.
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments (Continued)
As of June 30, 2020, the Board had no outstanding investments.

Interest Rate Risk — The Board does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk — State law limits investments as noted above (N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37). The District does not have an
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The Board places no limit in the amount the District may invest in any one issuer.

B. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2020 for the district’s individual major funds and internal service in the aggregate, including
the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

B.C.S.S.
Technology ~ Auditorium Management Interlocal
Special Capital Services Rentals-  Agreement- Agreement
General Revenue Projects Enterprise ~ Enterprise Services Services I,Qt_aj

Receivables:

Accounts $ 3,500 $ 96,102 $ 35400 § 135,002

Intergovernmental- 6,562,276 $ 1,964,665 $ 4,100,040 253,823 - $ 830,007 - 13,710,811
Gross Receivables 6,565,776 1,964,665 4,100,040 253,823 96,102 830,007 35,400 13,845,813

Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles - - - - - - - -
Net Total Receivables § 6,565,776 $ 1,964,665 $ 4,100,040 § 253,823 § 96,102 § 830,007 $ 35400 $ 13,845,813

C. Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds
were as follows:

Special Revenue Fund

Unencumbered grant draw downs $ 59,623
Grant draw downs reserved for encumbrances 356,586
Total unearned revenue for governmental funds $ 416,209
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Land Improvements

Buildings and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land and Land Improvements

Buildings and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Machinery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

Balance, Balance,
July 1. 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020
$ 1958520 $ 319,936 $ 2,278,456
79,658,975 4,800,335 84,459,310
29,928,232 2,073,831 - 32,002,063
111,545,727 7,194,102 - 118,739,829
(1,428,716) (44,101) (1,472,817)
(35,311,211) (2,709,940) (38,021,151)
(23,623,540) (1,369,525) - (24,993,065)
(60,363,467) (4,123,566) - (64,487,033)
51,182,260 3,070,536 - 54,252,796
$ 51,182260 $ 3,070,536 $ - $ 54,252,796
Balance, Balance,
July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020
$ 1,990,843 $§ - - $ 1,990,843
1,990,843 - - 1,990,843
(1,724,003) (37,160) - (1,761,163)
(1,724,003) (37,160) - (1,761,163)
266,840 (37,160) - 229,680
$ 266,840 $ (37,160) $ - $ 229,680
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
D. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:

Governmental activities:
Instruction

Regular
Vocational Education

Total Instruction

Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services
General Administrative Services
School Administrative Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance of Plant

Pupil Transportation
Business/Central and Other Support Services

Total Support Services
Total Governmental Funds
Capital assets held by the government's internal

service funds are charged to the various functions
based on their usage of the assets

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Food Service Fund

Technology Services Fund
Auditorium Rentals Fund

Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities
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1,275,017

1,275,017
2,550,034

1,328,102
17,296
17,296

105,211
63,517
34,592

1,566,014
4,116,048

7,518

4,123,566

13,693
16,514

6,953
37,160
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. Capital Assets (Continued)

Construction and Other Significant Commitments

The District has the following active construction projects as of June 30, 2020:

Remaining
Project Commitment
Expansion of the Girls Locker Room at Bergen County Academies $ 1,654,163
Furnish and Provide Automotive Spray Booth at Paramus 191,883
2020 International Chassis Complete with New Century Model 2465
Integrated Wrecker Body with Accessories 165,840
Science Lab Renovations at Bergen County Academies 119,123
5 2,131,009
E. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2020, is as follows:
Due To/From Other Funds
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Fund Special Revenue Fund $ 825,000
General Fund Capital Projects Fund 1,200,000
General Fund Internal Service Funds 835,000
General Fund Enterprise Funds 8,500
General Fund Agency Funds 7,000
S 2,875,500
Compensated Absences - Internal
Service Fund General Fund $ 3,393,064

The above balances are the result of revenues earned or other financing sources received in one fund which are due to
another fund and/or expenditures paid by one fund on behalf of another fund and/or to cover cash balances which were in
an overdraft position.

The District expects all interfund balances to be liquidated within one year except between General and Compensated
Absence Internal Service Funds.
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

E. Interfund Receivables, Pavables, and Transfers (Continued)

Interfund transfers

Compensated
Transfer In: Absenced
Enterprise  Capital Projects Internal Service
Funds Fund Fund Total
Transfer Out:
General Fund $ 225000 §$ 171,825 § 316,574 % 713,399

$ 225,000 § .171,825 $ 316,574 $ 713,399

The above transfers are the result of revenues earned and/or other financing sources received in one fund to finance
expenditures in another fund.

F. Other Long-Term Liabilities

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 3,076,490 $ 316,574 - $ 3,393,064
Net Pension Liability 40,845,470 - $ 3,484,659 37,360,811 -
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $ 43921960 $ 316,574 $ 3,484,659 $ 40,753,875 $ -

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are
included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. Also, for the governmental activities, the liabilities for

compensated absences and net pension liability are generally liquidated by the general fund.

53




BERGEN COUNTY TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to property, general liability, automobile coverage, theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; student accident; termination of employees and
natural disasters. The Board has obtained commercial insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the
exposure to the District should they occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the statistical section
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The District is a member of the County of Bergen’s Self Insurance pool for property, general liability, workers compensation
and automobile liability.

The relationship between the Board and the County of Bergen is governed by a contract and by-laws that have been adopted
by resolution of the unit's governing body. The Board has agreed to pay an annual installment based on a computation of the
Board’s share of the County’s premium as provided by the County. In return for this, the County of Bergen administers the
Board’s insurance funds.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements in
excess of insurance coverage’s in any of the prior three years.

The District has elect